
WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 1 of 7  

 

MINUTES 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Note:  These are summary minutes.  A tape recording of this meeting is on file in Wolcott 

Town Hall, Commission Secretary’s Office. 

 

Chairman Ray Mahoney called the Public Hearing to order at 6:30 p.m. with the Pledge of 

Allegiance and attendance was taken.   

 

Roll Call Attendance 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathe Sherman, Mike Bokon, Angelo Mastrofrancesco, Ray             

                                             Mahoney 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   Chris Edquist 

ALTERNATES PRESENT:  Rich Delpier 

ALTERNATES ABSENT:   None  

ALSO PRESENT: David Kalinowski, CZEO   

 

PERMIT APPLICATIONS  

 

1.  #15-525 Cumberland Farms – Special Use Permit for a Convenience Store / Gas 

Station at 1655 & 1665 Meriden Rd. and 180 Farview Ave.  

 

David Kalinowski, CZEO, said this came before him about a year ago with preliminary 

drawings and there were some variances that were needed so they went to ZBA and received 

the variances requested.   After the variances were approved a preliminary plan was submitted 

again to my office and we had preliminary meetings with the Town Engineer and Fire Marshal 

and there are letters here to be read into record.  He said what you have before you are the final 

plans plus letters in regards to traffic study, storm drainage and some thoughts from the Town 

Engineer and Fire Marshal.  Angelo Mastrofrancesco read into record the letters from the 

Town Engineer and Fire Marshal, (copies attached).   

 

Attorney Williams, representing Cumberland Farms, came forward and stated Cumberland 

Farms is looking to raze and rebuild its existing retail store and gas operations by adding 2 

parcels to the east and to shift the operations onto those parcels.  He said they propose to 

construct a new site with a  4,738 sq. ft. retail store building, a dumpster enclosure area, a 

parking lot, 4 underground storage tanks of 10,000 gallons each, 4 gas dispensers, a canopy, 

landscaping, lighting and signage.  Atty. Williams said they came before us months ago for a 

zone map change for the 180 Farview Ave. parcel and the Zoning Board of Appeals approved a 

few setback variances for this proposed plan.  He stated that each one of those variances is a 

reduction in existing non-conformities on the site.  He said the existing Cumberland Farms was 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 2 of 7  

 

built in 1976 and is in need of an upgrade along with the property next to it at 1665 Meriden 

Rd. (abandoned service station).  He said their proposal will result in a much more attractive 

and better functioning operation that will offer enhanced services.  In summary he said they 

respectively submit to us that the plans comply with all of our applicable regulations and the 

variances that were granted and believe they have received a fairly clean report from the Town 

Engineer.  Atty. Williams also said that you will hear tonight that the quality of storm water 

leaving the site will be improved over the existing conditions, site access will be appropriately 

controlled, a traffic study found no adverse impacts on the surrounding roadway network, and 

the site will look a whole lot better.  Atty. Williams went on to point out some of the 

architectural features of the building.   

 

Mark Grocki, Senior Engineer from V.H.B., came forward and stated the total site area is 1.57 

acres.  He said Cumberland Farms will be revamping and revitalizing the area.  He said they 

will be removing the underground storage tanks on existing property and constructing a new 

building on property located at 1665 Meriden Rd. and 180 Farview Ave.  He said there will be 

no future access to Chesterfield Ave. and the two curb cuts that were formerly on Meriden Rd. 

for Cumberland Farms will be removed and the proposed store will have two curb cuts on 

Meriden Rd. and two curb cuts on Farview Ave.  He said as far as parking for the proposed site 

there will be 29 spaces and the requirement is 28.  He said that they are considering the 8 

parking spaces at the pumps as part of the 29 spaces.  He said the fuel tankers entering the 

parking lot will be doing so on Farview Ave., unload the fuel (from passenger side) and exit 

onto Meriden Rd.  He said the dumpsters will be screened with a white composite material 

enclosure (6-1/2 feet high) and will provide adequate screening to residential property to the 

rear.  He also said they will have a double row of arborvitaes (10-12 feet) and a 6 ft. high vinyl 

fence along the north side of property by residential property.  He said there is a slight increase 

of impervious area which increases water runoff and it will be managed with an underground 

retention system and the peak runoff will be less than existing runoff.   He went on to discuss 

the 5 variances (on record) that were granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  There was 

concern about whether Cumberland Farms would have enough room to be able to take care of 

the arborvitaes behind the vinyl fence and they stated yes.   Commissioner Bokon asked if there 

was any underground tanks (at 1665 Meriden Rd.) and Mr. Grocki said he does not know but 

Cumberland Farms does commit to removing anything required for remediation of a site.  

Commissioner Mastrofrancesco asked about the deliveries to said location and Mr. Grocki said 

the fuel tankers which are about 50 ft. long will enter from front curb cut on Farview Ave., and 

what is considered an SU30 truck (basically a dump truck size) will enter from back curb cut 

on Farview Ave.  It was stated that gas deliveries would be 5-6 times per week, product 

deliveries would be 2 times per week and other vendors combined would be approximately 10 

times per week.  Commissioner Mastrofrancesco questioned about directing some of the traffic 

to Chesterfield and the applicant stated this configuration was best for Cumberland Farms 

which forces them to use the majority of land (at 1665 Meriden Rd. and 180 Farview Rd.) and 

they did not want to create any more impervious area and didn’t want to create more traffic 

issues on a street that is kind of unnecessary to do so in the first place.  There was also 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 3 of 7  

 

discussion regarding the time for trash pickup and it was stated it can be arranged so it will not 

be picked up in the middle of the night.   Commissioner Bokon asked about the lighting around 

the building and Mr. Grocki said they are all LED fixtures and full cut-off fixtures, and new 

technology today has very good pin point accuracy.   

 

Atty. Williams said in closing that they fully comply with the Special Permit standards in 

Section 31.13, the site is an appropriate location for the sale of the gas and will continue to 

operate safely, as it has (in the past). He said we submitted all the required information and 

complied with all applicable regulations and therefore respectfully request your approval.  

 

Joseph Corbett came forward and his concerns were the distance from the intersection of 

Meriden Rd. and Farview to the first entrance on Farview and the distance from the 

intersection to the first entrance on Meriden Rd.  He believes it should be fifty feet.  He was 

also concerned about the tankers entering the first entrance on Farview and the fact that they 

want to be open 24 hours.  He also had an issue with the house located on the property known 

as 1665 Meriden Rd. in which he believes it should be known as 186 Farview Ave.   

 

Thomas Shea came forward and said he agreed with Mr. Corbett.  He said that Farview Ave. is 

the main entrance into their neighborhood.  He said he doesn’t understand why (Cumberland 

Farms) doesn’t want to interrupt traffic on Chesterfield compared to the disruption on Farview. 

Mr. Shea said the 2 entrances on Farview Ave. is the contention, along with the city bus that is 

(illegally) parked on Farview daily (which is dangerous for cars pulling out of Dunkin Donuts 

now).  He said his main concern is safety, common sense and safety, and it is not being 

addressed.  He also said that it is ridiculous to count the spaces at the gas pumps as parking 

spaces.   

 

Chuck Marsella came forward and stated all of the neighbors here are concerned about safety. 

He said to him the design appears to be keeping the existing store open for as long as possible 

while the new store is being built.  He said if the gas island was moved down onto the existing 

property, the issue of Farview Ave. would be resolved.      

 

Dana Iasevoli said her house is on the north side of the property and is currently only 2 feet 

from the property line, so she wanted to know how far the trees would be from her house.  She 

also said they mentioned the fence would be 6 feet and is requesting that it be an 8 foot fence.  

She said her house is very close to the receiving area and she does not want to hear traffic and 

trucks just 25 feet from her house. She also mentioned there was a patio area with tables shown 

on the plans but it was supposed to be eliminated according to the meeting with Zoning Board 

of Appeals.  Atty. Williams stated it was eliminated.   

 

Lorraine Shea came forward and stated the Farview Ave. issues are the problem.  She also had 

a problem with all the green area that is on the west side of the properties (Chesterfield Ave.) 

Her concerns were the traffic on Farview Ave. and how Meriden Rd. is already a stop road, 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 4 of 7  

 

especially on Fridays.  She doesn’t understand why Cumberland Farms was moved over and 

tripled in size.  She thought the purpose of the bigger store would be more storage, less 

deliveries as she was told at the last meeting (Z.B.A. Meeting).  She said she doesn’t 

understand (where Cumberland Farms) is accommodating the residential people.  She said they 

do need updating but they need to remember who their customers are, it is the neighborhood.  

She said she still believes there is going to be many traffic issues/accidents at the intersection 

and entering and exiting Cumberland Farms on both Meriden Rd. and Farview Ave. 

 

Cheryl Gibran came forward and asked if D.O.T. has to do a traffic study and if so, is it done? 

She said someone from Cumberland Farms did one but believes D.O.T. should be addressing 

the traffic problem.  She stated that for safety reasons there should only be a right hand turn out 

onto Farview from Cumberland Farms.  She stated that the city bus that parks on Farview is 

another issue. She also said they should put up no parking signs up Farview Ave. to eliminate 

cars or delivery trucks from parking on the side of the road.   

 

George Gibran came forward and also stated his problem is the entrance and exit onto Farview 

Ave.  He said right now the big problem is Dunkin Donuts, with traffic being backed up onto 

Meriden Rd. just to get in to get their coffee, and this (project) would be adding to an already 

congested area.  He said the plan is great and it is going to improve the area but he still thinks it 

is a hazard.   

 

Atty. Williams came forward and said they would be glad to increase the screening fence size 

from 6 ft. to 8 ft. as Ms. Iasevoli requested.   He said they can also put a time limit for the trash 

trucks to pick up so it is not too early in the morning.   Chairman Mahoney asked if the plan 

was to keep the existing store open during construction and Atty. Williams said he was not 

sure but he supposes briefly while site work is being done on the other.  Atty. Williams said 

that is not the reason why the site was designed this way.  He said the way they needed to setup 

their operations is to have enough room for the people that wait for their coffee and to have 

sufficient room for the trucks to maneuver on the site.   

 

Mr. Grocki came forward to state the driveways are in compliance with the zoning regulations 

and D.O.T. does have jurisdiction over Meriden Rd. but they have not contacted them yet as 

they require plans go through Planning and Zoning first.  Mr. Grocki said they see no issues 

with tanker truck deliveries.  He also said as for the trees they are proposing the arborvitaes are 

2 to 3 feet from neighboring property but as it is a concern to the neighbor they are willing to 

move the trees back as far as they can to accommodate the neighbor and still accommodate 

their proposed drop off.  CZEO asked roughly how far they can relocate those trees and Mr. 

Grocki said maybe 10 to 15 feet in but they are still adding to the current green space that is 

there now.  There was a brief discussion regarding moving the underground tanks and fuel 

pumps down further on the current property at 1655 Meriden Rd., (utilizing more of that 

property), due to traffic and possible tanker issues and Mr. Grocki stated it would increase 

impervious area which they are trying to avoid.  Atty. Williams said D.O.T. has experts and 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 5 of 7  

 

engineers that review and analyze the information they give to them and if they do not like it 

D.O.T. will requests additional information.  

 

Charlie Baker, fromVHB, Professional Traffic Engineer, said they did review safety records 

that were provided by D.O.T. for the intersection of Meriden Rd. and Farview Ave. and 

according to those records there were only 3 accidents reported in a 3 year period and it is not 

considered a high accident rate location.  He also said there is a list known as “suggested list of 

surveillance study sites” which is a list of intersections in the state that the D.O.T. identifies as 

high accident locations that should be looked at for monitoring ways to improve safety and this 

intersection is not on that list.  He said the curb cuts onto Farview Ave. are a benefit to the area 

because it is very difficult to exit Cumberland Farms by taking a left onto Meriden Rd. and 

with these curb cuts they can exit onto Farview Ave. and use the traffic signal to turn left onto 

Meriden Rd.  Commissioner Delpier said that if there were two cars in line to get gas then the 

tanker truck will have to sit on the side road and wait to get into the parking lot and Mr. Grocki 

said that is a valid point but it is a standard issue for all gas stations that trucks do have to wait 

for cars to move around at times.   Again there was more discussion regarding the possibility to 

move the curb cut on Meriden Rd., where the underground tanks are, down further then they 

could enter there and be over the pumps as soon as he pulled in. It was stated that they have 

reviewed this with Cumberland Farms a number of times and they know this is the layout they 

want to pursue.  This is ideal for their operations and they know how the trucks deliver and 

what they want.  Charlie Baker said in his professional opinion this is the site plan to go with 

and Cumberland Farms wants to pursue this site (plan) also.  After a brief discussion on 

moving the underground tanks and the curb cuts, Atty. Williams said the Commission does not 

have any analysis or data in front of them that says what they have proposed to us creates any 

kind of safety problem whatsoever.  

 

Joe Corbett stated that at a different meeting (12/17/2014) it was stated that the D.O.T. would 

not allow Cumberland Farms to use the front entrances on Meriden Rd. to bring in their tankers 

or trailer trucks and that is why they want to use Farview Ave.  Thomas Shea wanted to know 

if the Traffic Engineer consulted the local Police Dept., Waterbury and Cheshire with regards 

to accidents at the intersection and Charlie Baker said the records they received were provided 

by the D.O.T. and they compile their records by searching local police departments. He said the 

records that the D.O.T. track is only accidents involving a personal injury or property damage 

in excess of $1,000.00. 

   

At this time there were no more comments from the Public or the Commission and Chairman 

Mahoney closed the public hearing on application #15-525 at 8:18 p.m. with the exception of 

receiving comments from the Professional or Consulting Engineer.   

  

Upon MOTION by Mike Bokon, seconded by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, it was unanimously 

voted to TAKE a 5 minute recess.  

 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 6 of 7  

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

At 6:37 p.m. Chairman Mahoney called the Regular Meeting to order.  (Attendance was taken 

and it was the same as listed above under Public Hearing). 

 

Rich Delpier were seated as a regular member. 

 

PUBLIC REQUESTS 

 

There were no Public Requests at this time. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Upon MOTION by Mike Bokon, seconded by Rich Delpier, it was unanimously voted to 

APPROVE the minutes from the 12/2/2015 Regular Meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF BILLS 

 

There were no bills at this time.  

 

CORRESPONDENCES 

 

There were no Correspondences at this time. 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

There were no Subcommittee Reports at this time.   

 

OLD BUSINESS   

 

1. #15-525 Cumberland Farms – Special Use Permit for a Convenience Store / Gas 

Station at 1655 & 1665 Meriden Rd. and 180 Farview Ave.  

 

Chairman Mahoney said this application has been tabled.  (Public Hearing was closed with the 

exception of receiving comments from the Professional or Consulting Engineer). 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no New Business at this time. 

 

 

 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 7 of 7  

 

 

CERTIFIED ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

 

CZEO said the walking trail has been completed ahead of schedule and would recommend that 

everyone in town walk the new trail.   

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

There was no Executive Session at this time.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Upon MOTION by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, seconded by Cathe Sherman, it was unanimously 

voted to ADJOURN the Regular Meeting at 8:30 p.m.  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_____________________________  _______________________________ 

Raymond Mahoney, Jr., Chairman                  Edna Henderson, Recording Secretary 

Planning & Zoning Commission                     Planning & Zoning Commission 


